
           

Self-Insured Healthcare Trust Board
Goodyear City Hall - Work Session Room 125
1900 N. Civic Square
Goodyear, AZ 85395

Tuesday, March 4, 2025 11:30 a.m. Meeting Agenda

AGENDA AMENDED - Day of week fixed to Tuesday, March 4, 2025 

           
CALL TO ORDER
 

ROLL CALL
 

BUSINESS

 

1. APPROVE MINUTES
  Approve draft minutes from the Self-Insured Healthcare Trust Board meeting October 30, 2024
 

2. Recognition of Service for former board member Richard Newcomer   
 

3. Review, discuss and take possible action on financials   
 

4. Review, discuss and take possible action on Wellness Center Request for Proposal (RFP) update   
 

5. Review, discuss and take possible action on renewals   
 

6. Review, discuss and take possible action on setting rates for FY Plan Year for Medical and PPO Dental
Plans. 

  

 

INFORMATION ITEMS
Comments, Commendations, Report on Current Events and Presentations by Board, Commission or Committee
Members, staff or members of the public. The members may not propose, discuss, deliberate or take any legal
action on the information presented pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02.
 

NEXT MEETING

Tentatively scheduled for October 23, 2025
 



ADJOURNMENT

 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Board and to the general public that
the Board will hold a meeting open to the public. Public body members of the city of Goodyear will attend either in
person or by telephone conference call and/or video communication.

THE CITY OF GOODYEAR ENDEAVORS TO MAKE ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS
WITH DISABILITIES. With 48-hour advance notice, special assistance can be provided for sight and/or
hearing-impaired persons at this meeting. Reasonable accommodations will be made upon request for persons with
disabilities or non-English speaking residents. Please call the City Clerk (623) 882-7830 or Arizona Relay (TDD)
7-1-1 to request an accommodation to participate in this public meeting.

LA CIUDAD DE GOODYEAR PROCURA HACER TODA JUNTA PUBLICA ACCESIBLE A PERSONAS CON
DISCAPACIDADES. Con un aviso de 48 horas por adelantado se puede proveer asistencia especial a personas
con discapacidades visuales o auditivas durante la junta. Se harán adaptaciones razonables con previa solicitud
para personas con discapacidades o para residentes que no hablan inglés. Favor de llamar a la Secretaria
Municipal al (623) 882-7830 o Retransmisión de Arizona (TDD) 7-1-1 para solicitar adaptaciones para participar en
la junta pública.

POSTING VERIFICATION
This agenda was posted on February 28, 2025 at 6:06 p.m. by CW.



ITEM #: 1. 
DATE: 03/04/2025

Self-Insured Healthcare Trust Board

SUBJECT
APPROVE MINUTES

Recommendation
Approve draft minutes from the Self-Insured Healthcare Trust Board meeting October 30, 2024

Attachments
Draft Minutes 



Self-Insured Healthcare Trust Board
Goodyear City Hall - La Jolla Vista Conference Room 2nd Floor
1900 N. Civic Square
Goodyear, AZ 85395

Thursday, October 30, 2024 3:00 p.m. Meeting Minutes

 

Present: Chair Michael Balsan; Vice Chair Wade Foster; Boardmember Jennifer Preyer-Bonton; Ex-Officio
Jared Askelson; Committee Member Kathleen Koncel 

Staff
Present:

Human Resources Director Lyman Locket; Total Compensation & HRIS Manager Chi Herrington;
Benefits Analyst Chanda Washington 

Attendees: Krystle Edmonds, Cigna Strategic Account Executive; Charlie Broucek, Sr. Vice President, Brown &
Brown; Paula Campbell, Benefits Consultant, Brown & Brown 

 

               
CALL TO ORDER

 
ROLL CALL

 

BUSINESS

 
1. APPROVE MINUTES

Approve draft minutes from the Self-Insured Healthcare Trust Board meeting March 5, 2024
  

 
  MOTION BY Chair Michael Balsan, SECONDED BY Vice Chair Wade Foster to APPROVE the draft

minutes of the Self-Insured Healthcare Trust Board meeting held on Wednesday, October 30, 2024.
The motion carried by the following vote:  

  AYE: Chair Michael Balsan, Vice Chair Wade Foster, Boardmember Jennifer Preyer-Bonton,
Ex-Officio Jared Askelson, Committee Member Kathleen Koncel 

Passed - Unanimously 

 
2. Introduction of New Board Member
 
  Lyman Locket introduced and welcomed new board member Kathleen Koncel who is replacing

Richard Newcomer. Board member Koncel gave an overview of her background and advised she
comes with 30 plus years of experience in pharmaceuticals and has been in Arizona 6 years. Each
board member and attendee introduced themselves and also provided their background and
experience information. 

 

3. Review, discuss and take possible action on financials.
 
  Jared Askelson explained the claims experience noting rebates on the investment income are



  Jared Askelson explained the claims experience noting rebates on the investment income are
coming in better than expected. For the first quarter FY 25, we expect net assets to decrease in our
budget plan and expected the fund balance to go down approximately $600K for the first
quarter.  We are showing down approximately $200K in change of net assets. The numbers
are slightly off due to not getting rebates on a quarterly basis. Right now, we are on schedule of
where we expected to be at this point. FY 24 ended better and stated that we are right on schedule
of where we expected to be for FY 25. The reserve is $5.8M as of September 2024 and we have
about $8.6M so we are exceeding our fund balance by $2.8M. There was a discussion on the
reserve and there is no cap on the reserve, but there is a minimum on the reserve. The $5.8M
reserve threshold is set based upon two months of expected claims and all fixed plan expenses.
There was a question whether the reserve is strictly held for healthcare or if other parts of the
government can use if needed. Lyman Locket clarified that everything in the $8.6M balance can
only be used for healthcare. The plan is running well. FY 24 actually was better than
expected with the claims coming in a little bit lower and the rebates on the investment income.
There was discussion on whether that was due to attrition of employees or has that remained
constant. The group discussed the wellness center as a cost containment component. 

 
 

4. Review, discuss and take possible action on FY'25 claims experience. 
 
  A question was asked about what accounted for the claims being less than expected. Lyman

explained the plan was running well. Charlie Broucek further explained the claims experience and
how Brown & Brown is tracking how the plan is running based upon the budget.

Charlie discussed the executive dashboard and mentioned the plan is running at 95% which means
we set out on a year-to-date budget through September and we are running 5% better with a
year-to-date surplus of $187K. Because claims fluctuate, the first three months is not indicative of
the next nine months, but shows the plan is performing well. The total medical costs on a
year-to-date basis is $3.535M against the budget of $3.723M which forms the surplus of $187K.
There was discussion of the top 10 claimants. The population of the plan was reviewed at 803
employees and 2064 dependents covered as of September 2024. The average of employees and
covered dependents is higher than in previous years. The board reviewed large claimants summary
information at or above $50K. The HSA plan was discussed as well as sharing the advantages of
that plan with members. Lyman shared that the city has added another benefits analyst in order to
help with the retiree healthcare program and the city will look at educating employees about city
benefits. Charlie discussed the pharmacy trend is 10.3%.  Lyman asked if Brown & Brown can
include in the reporting the claimants that will potentially come off the plan and Charlie confirmed
this data can be provided on a monthly basis. 

 
 

5. Review, discuss and take possible action on Cigna Total Health Insight Overview. 
 
  Krystle Edmonds provided information on Cigna Total Health Insight. She introduced herself to new

board member Koncel and outlined her role with having the City of Goodyear account. Krystle
explained the Cigna data provided is based on gross, all employee/member cost share, copays,
deductibles, coinsurance combined with what the city pays for the claims so the full picture analysis
will not reconcile with the financials. Data reviewed was for plan year July 1, 2023 through June 30,
2024. The city has maintained an average of 5% trend from year to year compared to Cigna's book
of business of 9% average trend. There was a jump from 2022 plan year into 2023 plan year
overall with the plan performing better than the national trend level. The city had a 6.5% increase in
members enrolled in the plan which is a little higher than Cigna's book of business. The medical and
pharmacy trend was reviewed. The medical saw a 2.7% increase year over year and the pharmacy
decreased 6%. The biggest reason for the decrease in pharmacy was a high-cost medication that
one member was on and that member has come off the plan. With this member coming off the plan,



it led to a decrease on the catastrophic medical and specialty pharmacy. Catastrophic medical refers
to any claim that was paid over $100K, these are called catastrophic claimants for the purposes of
the report. Anything non-catastrophic claimants is less than $100K and includes normal utilization of
office visits, outpatient surgeries, and professional services. The medical spend for 2023-2024 plan
year was just under $11M compared to the prior year at almost $10M. The top three diagnosis
accounted for 40% of the medical spend. Pharmacy spend was discussed. The top three
therapeutic classes account for 47% of the pharmacy spend. In the current year there are 14
catastrophic claimants compared to 17 in the prior plan year. There was discussion of capturing the
percentage of the population who doesn't use their health plan to promote services and as a
minimum getting them to go to their wellness visit. The city does well at promotion, but with new
members it is not unusual to see this percentage of non-users. Pharmacy saw a 15% decrease in
specialty which is huge as those costs are rising. 17 members had 52 interactions with Accredo
specialty pharmacy which delivers specialty medication and managed dispensing to a facility of
members' homes. These are typically injections or infusions. The overall pharmacy trend costs are
driven by inflation, utilization and drug mix. Drug mixed was discussed and the top 10 medications
included ADHD and antidepressants which shows patients are being treated for these conditions.
There was discussion of the catastrophic summary showing 14 claimants this year account for 26%
of total spend and all these members have chronic conditions. Krystle advised the board that the city
has a 79% overall engagement rate. 

 

6. Review, discuss and take possible action on Wellness Center Request for Proposal (RFP) update. 
 
  Chi Herrington informed the board that the RFP for the Wellness Center is in the ten-day protest

period so the city cannot announce who will have the contract at this time. Once the RFP has been
finalized, the board will be notified about the contract. 

 

INFORMATION ITEMS
Comments, Commendations, Report on Current Events and Presentations by Board, Commission or
Committee Members, staff or members of the public. The members may not propose, discuss, deliberate or
take any legal action on the information presented pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02.

 

NEXT MEETING

Tentatively scheduled for February 5, 2025

 
  Board Chair Balsan advised the board that the next meeting is tentatively scheduled for February 5,

2025. It was mentioned the goal of the February meeting is to set rates for next plan year. 
 

ADJOURNMENT

 
  MOTION BY Chair Michael Balsan, SECONDED BY Vice Chair Wade Foster 

  AYE: Chair Michael Balsan, Vice Chair Wade Foster, Boardmember Jennifer Preyer-Bonton,
Ex-Officio Jared Askelson, Committee Member Kathleen Koncel 

Passed - Unanimously 

 
 

There being no further business to discuss, Chairman Balsan adjourned the meeting at 2:30 p.m.



There being no further business to discuss, Chairman Balsan adjourned the meeting at 2:30 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted by:

  
_____________________________
Lyman Locket, Human Resources Director

__________________________
Michael Balsan, Board Chairman

Date:___________________

 


	Agenda
	AI_25092509
	       ATT_Draft Minutes

